Company Registration Number: 07831292 (England and Wales)

WOODSIDE HIGH SCHOOL

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

WEUNESDAT



LD3 12/12/2018
COMPANIES HOUSE

#54

CONTENTS

	Page
Reference and Administrative Details	1 - 2
Governors' Report	3 - 10
Governance Statement	11 - 14
Statement on Regularity, Propriety and Compliance	15
Statement of Governors' Responsibilities	16
Independent Auditors' Report on the Financial Statements	17 - 19
Independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity	20 - 21
Statement of Financial Activities Incorporating Income and Expenditure Account	22
Balance Sheet	23
Statement of Cash Flows	24
Notes to the Financial Statements	· 25 - 45

WOODSIDE HIGH SCHOOL

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

REFERENCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE DETAILS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Members

Susan Davidson Noreen Graham Gerard Kelly Miranda Smith

Governors

Susan Mary Davidson Samuel James Freedman Noreen Catherine Graham Dr Phillip Jeremy Graham Gerard Anthony Kelly, Chair Margaret McCartan (resigned 31 December 2017) Miranda Smith Jacob Adekunle Ceri Humm Sharon Smith Elma McElligott Gerry Robinson Rose-Marie Corbin Felicia Rock Nuwan Bodhinayake (appointed 14 November 2017) Daniel Cain-Reed (appointed 29 March 2018)

Company registered number

07831292

Company name

Woodside High School

Principal and registered office

White Hart Lane London N22 5QJ

Senior management team

Elma McElligott, Co Headteacher Gerry Robinson, Co Headteacher Arthur Barzey, Deputy Headteacher (resigned 31 December 2017) Tracey Rollings, Assistant Head Teacher Stephanie Simpson, Assistant Head Teacher Laura Sanford, Assistant Head Teacher Liam Davis, Assistant Head Teacher (appointed 16 April 2018) Jennifer Berry, Assistant Head Teacher Jonathan Durbin, Business Manager

REFERENCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE DETAILS OF THE ACADEMY, ITS GOVERNORS AND ADVISERS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Advisers (continued)

Independent auditors

haysmacintyre 10 Queen Street Place London EC4R 1AG

Bankers

National Westminster Bank 3rd Floor, Lough Point 2 Gladbeck Way Enfield EN2 7JA

GOVERNORS' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

The Governors present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditor's report of the charitable company for the 1 September 2017 to 31 August 2018. The Annual Report serves the purposes of both a Governors' Report, and a Directors' Report under company law.

Structure, governance and management

a. Constitution

The academy is a charitable company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity.

The charitable company's Memorandum of Association is the primary governing document of the academy trust.

The Governors of Woodside High School are also the directors of the charitable company for the purpose of company law.

Details of the Governors who served during the are included in the Reference and Administrative details on page 1

b. Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be a member.

c. Governors' indemnities

Employees and governors are covered by professional indemnity insurance for failings arising from the performance of their duties that may lead to civil liability. There are no other specific third party indemnities beyond this which require reporting in the context of section 236 of the Companies Act 2006.

d. Method of recruitment and appointment or election of Governors

The number of Governors shall not be less than three. The Members of the School Academy Trust may appoint Governors, there is a provision for two parent Governors to be appointed and three staff Governors, along with the Headteacher of the Academy, and three Co opted Governors.

The Governors' are elected at a full Governors' Meeting on the basis of their eligibility, personal competence, specialist skills and local availability.

e. Policies and procedures adopted for the induction and training of Governors

New Governors are inducted into the workings of the Academy, and also the requirements of the Academy being a Company and exempt Charity. A number of Governors have attended professional training courses in the period to allow them to efficiently fulfil their duties.

f. Organisational structure

The management structure consists of two levels; the Governors with the Governors' Committees, and the Senior Leadership Team.

GOVERNORS' REPORT (continued) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

The Governors are responsible for setting the general policy, adopting an annual budget, monitoring the Academy by the use of budgets and making major decisions about the direction of the Academy, capital expenditure and senior staff appointments.

The Full Governing Body has established two sub committees. Each sub committee has its own terms of reference detailing the responsibilities discharged to the sub committee, to the Co Headteachers (the Accounting Officer) and to the Senior Leadership Team. The terms of reference and meeting frequency for each sub committee is reviewed and approved by the Full Governing Body annually. The terms of reference for the Finance and Resources Sub Committee detail the School's authorised spending limits.

The sub committees of the Governing Body are:

- Curriculum and Inclusion Committee
- Finance and Resources Committee

The membership and responsibilities of each sub committee is discussed in the Governance Statement. For the period 1st September 2017 to 31st August 2018 the Core Senior Leadership Team consisted of the Co Headteachers Ms McElligott and Ms Robinson, Deputy Headteacher Mr Barzey (until 31st December 2017) and the School Business Manager, Jonathan Durbin.

They control the Academy at an executive level and implement the policies set by the Governors and report back to them.

g. Pay policy for key management personnel

Operational control of the School is exercised by the Senior Leadership Team. As well as the above four staff, this includes five Assistant Headteachers. These are considered, along with the Governors, to be key management personnel. Remuneration of new appointees to the SLT are based on knowledge of salaries necessary to secure appointments to the post, and the level of responsibility and seniority attached to the post.

h. Connected organisations, including related party relationships

Owing to the nature of the Academy's operations and the composition of the board of governors being drawn from local public and private sector organisations. It is inevitable that transactions will take place with organisations in which a member of the board of governors may have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted at arm's length and in accordance with the Academy's financial regulations and normal procurement procedures.

Dr Philip Graham, as well as a Governor of Woodside High School, is also a Governor of Riverside School.

i. Fundraising disclosure

Woodside High School has not make any fundraising appeals to the general public during the year, and is unlikely to do so in the future. There has been no outsourced fundraising via professional fundraisers or other third parties and as a result the school is not registered with the fundraising regulator and received no fundraising complaints in the year.

j. Trade Union Facility Time

Woodside High School had no employees who were relevant trade union officials during the year, and therefore incurred no costs in relation to paid facility time.

GOVERNORS' REPORT (continued) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Objectives and Activities

a. Objects and aims

The principal object as set out in the Memorandum and Articles of Association is the operation of Woodside High School to advance for the public benefit education in the United Kingdom, establishing, maintaining, carrying on, managing and developing a school offering a broad curriculum.

The overall mission and strategy of Woodside High School is to provide a learning environment that will transform the learning of all students, provide an innovative curriculum and serve the local community of Wood Green.

In order to achieve the mission statement the Academy aims to:

- Build an efficient, learning focused community that is welcoming and inclusive, and that is committed to raising aspirations and achievement.
- Identify and nurture each individual's unique talents by setting a range of challenging yet realistic
 expectations, and providing the support necessary to meet those expectations.
- Provide a place where students are valued and feel safe, feel good about themselves and each
 other, enjoy life to the full and are given every opportunity to achieve their full potential, and
 encouraged to contribute positively to their community.
- Provide opportunities for every Academy student to fulfil their potential irrespective of their social or economic circumstances.
- Instill a love of learning that will see students through their education to a fulfilling career and personal life. We believe that successful learners produce confident individuals and responsible citizens.

b. Objectives, strategies and activities

For the year 2017/18 our key objectives were to secure an upward trajectory and hit 2018 targets for KS3 & KS4 and to identify, in a timely fashion, any gaps between groups through the years 7 to 11. Where necessary, we sought to intervene to close those gaps.

As part of that we sought to fully understand how well students make progress relative to their starting points; how well gaps are narrowing between the performance of different groups of students and compared to all students nationally; how well current students learn, the quality of their work in a range of subjects and the progress they have made since joining the school; how well students with disabilities and those who have SEN have achieved since joining the school; the extent to which students develop a range of skills, including communication, reading and writing and mathematical skills, and how well they apply these across the curriculum; the standards attained by students by the time they leave school, with a focus on standards in reading, writing and maths.

In that context we had a number of key priorities:

- To continue the upward trajectory and hit 2015 to 2018 targets for KS3 & KS4;
- Identify, in a timely fashion, any gaps between groups (Y7 11), & intervene to close these gaps.

c. Public benefit

The Governors confirm that they have complied with the duty in the Charities Act 2011 to have due regard to the public benefit guidance published by the Charity Commission in determining the activities undertaken by the charitable company.

GOVERNORS' REPORT (continued) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Strategic report

Achievements and performance

a. Going concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Governors has a reasonable expectation that the academy has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason it continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the Accounting Policies.

b. Review of activities

In the context that all students arrive at Woodside High School with educational attainment on entry significantly below national average, our 5 or more A* to C (all subjects) outcomes exceeded the Fischer Family Trust (FFT) predictions for the past year.

Whilst the results for 2017/18 were slightly below those for 2016/17 at grade 4+ for English and Maths, they were above the previous year outcomes at level 5+ (English and Maths). Furthermore, the results were the first where almost all outcomes were on the new 1 9 grading scale.

However, the national benchmark for 2017/18 is Progress 8. Progress 8 measures a student's progress between Key Stage 2 and Key Stage 4 across eight key subjects. It shows whether students have performed to expectation, based on a value added measure using Key Stage 2 English and Maths as a baseline. A score above zero means pupils made more progress, on average, than pupils across England who got similar results at the end of key stage 2.

At Woodside, we achieved a Progress 8 score of +0.25 which shows that our students are making well above the expected level of progress. (Our students got exam outcomes that were, on average, 0.25 grades better than were predicted, based on the KS2 (primary school) outcomes).

The School is pleased with the achievements of its students for this School year. These results demonstrate that the progress of our students is excellent, in the top 18% nationally.

Nonetheless, for the next year key focus will be to raise attainment in Key Stage Four through:

- Regular assessment of Year 11 students to identify skills gaps and provide intervention
- Regular analysis of data to inform predictions and identify vulnerable students
- A mentoring programme for Year 11 students
- Increased collaboration with other schools, focusing on Year 11 exam preparation
- Frequent and targeted staff training from exam boards
- Emphasis on developing exam resilience for year 11 students

With regard to teaching, as noted above our pupil achievement is high because nearly all teaching is at least good, and we are continuing to develop teaching further through a programme of incremental coaching.

Contributing to the steady rise in performance is the work we have carried out to increase attendance levels. These show an upward trend historically, although a plateau has been reached in more recent years. Increasing attendance levels is presently a high priority for 2018/19 and the School has recently appointed an Attendance Officer.

GOVERNORS' REPORT (continued) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Our Students take ever better ownership of their education which is evidenced by their punctuality to lessons, which we reinforce through assemblies, tutor time and parents meetings.

In terms of leadership, many of our middle and senior leaders undertake the NPQML and NPSML programmes. Some middle leaders work with senior leaders as part of the Developing Leaders programme. All middle leaders completed intensive leadership training with Olevi in 2017/18 and our leadership conference provided investment in leadership development.

Sport: in recognition of the positive contribution it can make to learning, as well as positive benefits in its own right, the School provides an extensive range of extra curricular sports activities, in addition to the normal PE curriculum. There are School clubs for boys' and girls' football, basketball, table tennis, netball, hand ball, cricket, rugby, athletics, volleyball, tennis, badminton and rounders. We continue as a hub for the School Games Organiser programmes.

The School annually also puts on a various theatrical performances, including a drama and music performance of 'High School Musical', to sell out audiences.

The Music Department has expanded over the last year with a number of new initiatives and success stories. The school previously invested in 15 Apple Mac computers for the department to enable pupils to build on their technology and compositional skills, and has upgraded its music software to support learning. Our investment in a set of steel pans has increased the number of students participating in extra-curricular music opportunities.

Instrumental lessons continue and a number of musicians have been encouraged to prepare for the ABRSM grades on their instrument.

c. Investment policy and performance

The Academy operates an investment policy that minimises risk whilst maintaining access to funds by earning interest on its bank deposits. The Academy intends to invest operating surpluses into fixed term interest rate accounts with UK based institutions. This is considered to be low risk.

Financial review

a. Reserves policy

The school currently holds reserves as follows, unrestricted funds of £287k, restricted funds of £95k (excluding pension deficit reserve of £627k) and restricted asset funds relating to the fixed assets of the trust of £19.3m.

The school is maintaining reserve funds in order to pay for a period of transition as the School grows and has to subsidise the ESFA school finance system of arears funding for increases in student numbers.

The school keeps its reserves in interest bearing accounts with its Bankers. There is an automatic transfer at the end of each banking day from/to the current account to ensure funds in that non interest earning account are kept as close to zero as is possible. Despite the uncertainty over the future of school funding, we are confident that there will be no cash flow issues for the present financial year (2017/18).

Nonetheless, the School is heavily penalised by the lag in funding because our income for 2017/18 was based on the number of students in 2016/17. Therefore for 2017/18 we were operating a school with 1008 students, but with funding for only 948 students (the number on roll in October 2016).

The substantial parts of the School's reserves are restricted to educational purposes, as required by the School's Funding Agreement with the ESFA. There are additional unrestricted funds, for example money brought into the academy upon conversion and letting's income which is unrestricted, but will nonetheless be spent on educational purposes.

GOVERNORS' REPORT (continued) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

b. Principal risks and uncertainties

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Academy are as follows:

• Uncertainties in education funding from the ESFA following changes to the student funding formula and the Academy's ability to adjust its cost base appropriately, in particular changes to the support via the Pupil Premium;

Mitigation: we have developed a sound 5 year income/expenditure forecast; this provides clear information to assist advance decision making around where potential savings could be made.

 Ability to maintain pupil numbers to the current levels, and to grow to continue to fill 8 forms of entry in subsequent years;

Mitigation The School will continue to focus on student outcomes including ensuring the students all make the highest level of progress, to ensure that the School remains one where high demand for places is maintained;

Increasing building maintenance costs as the buildings age.

Mitigation The School will be reviewing all facilities management costs in the next financial year, including determining whether economic returns can be gained by reviewing the premises lettings service.

c. Key Performance indicators

The key financial performance indicator is variation from the Budget Forecast. This has provided the benchmark against which the financial performance of the school will be measured. It has been measured by regular monthly monitoring and reporting of expenditure and income against the forecast figures. These monthly financial performance results were reported to the meetings of the School's Finance and Resources Committee and Full Governing Body.

We will also closely monitor staff/pupil ratios, and per pupil funding, particularly in preparing our longer term strategic financial plans for the next 5 years. The longevity of non core school income will also be carefully monitored, such as the Government's plans around performance obligations connected to the Pupil Premium. We will also actively work with the Haringey School Forum as it prepares for the distribution of school funds, with a view to assessing the impact of the long delayed Fair funding Formula when it emerges from Central Government.

Financial Review

The Academy's income for the period amounted to £7.89m compared to £7.57m in 2016/17. Income consisted largely of the General Annual Grant (GAG) of £6.83m (2016/17: £6.47m) plus other Dfe/EFA and LEA grants of £0.74m (2016/17: £0.76m). Expenditure before defined benefit pension scheme adjustments and depreciation was £7.98m (2016/7: £7.49m), and therefore we have carried forward £383k (2016/17: £513k), excluding fixed asset and pension funds as at 31 August 2018.

The Academy took on pension liabilities relating to staff transferred from its predecessor school who were part of the Local Government Defined Benefits pension scheme. As at 31 August 2018, the schemes liabilities exceeded its assets by £0.63m (2017: £1.09m). Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event of academy closure, outstanding local government pension scheme liabilities would be met by the Department for Education.

WOODSIDE HIGH SCHOOL

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERNORS' REPORT (continued) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

The Academy had free reserves at the end of the period, including restricted funds for use within the School's objects, of £383k (2017: £513k).

The reserves available to the School reflect the continued impact of lag funding and are continuing to reduce but nontheless are in line with forecasts.

We continue to benefit significant savings by joining the Risk Protection Arrangement (for insurance). Additionally, our externally managed catering service, and a print/copying contract both deliver major cash savings as well as better quality.

Financial and Risk Management Objectives and Policies: The financial and cash position of the Academy is monitored carefully on a regular basis. Each month, bank balances are reconciled to transactions, and no concerns have been raised.

Plans for future periods

a. Future developments

The School strives to continually improve levels of attainment for all students, equipping them with the qualifications, skills and character to follow their chosen pathway, whether it be into further and higher education or employment.

The curriculum, the quality of teaching and learning and informed interventions are consistently reviewed to help every child achieve their full potential.

The School believes that developing the whole child is critical to improving levels of attainment and in developing broader skills and character that will develop students' commitment to lifelong learning and enrich their quality of life. To this extent, the School strives to provide exceptional behaviour and attendance management support to its students and to offer a broad range of extra curricular activities.

For the year 2018/19 our key objectives are an upward trajectory and again beat our targets for KS3 & KS4, and to identify, in a timely fashion, any gaps between groups through the years 7 to 11 and, where necessary, to intervene to close those gaps. As highlighted elsewhere, the focus is upon ensuring that we improve attainment at Key Stage Four (number of students achieving grade 5+ in English and Maths) and increase the Progress 8 score.

As part of that we will fully understand how well students make progress relative to their starting points; how well gaps are narrowing between the performance of different groups of students and compared to all students nationally; how well current students learn, the quality of their work in a range of subjects and the progress they have made since joining the school; how well students with disabilities and those who have SEN have achieved since joining the school; the extent to which students develop a range of skills, including communication, reading and writing and mathematical skills, and how well they apply these across the curriculum; and the standards attained by students by the time they leave school, with a focus on standards in reading, writing and maths.

In that context we have a number of key priorities, as set out in the Strategic Development Plan (WHS Strategic Development Plan) including an overarching vision to: **Bring equality of educational experience to every student in order to maximise outcomes for all.**

The strategic objectives are:

- Strengthen leadership at all levels
- Improve the quality of teaching and learning across the school;
- Reduce fixed term exclusions; Improve attendance and punctuality; Develop the role of the form tutor;
- Meet the challenges of a growing school

GOVERNORS' REPORT (continued) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

The SDP is available on the School's website at: http://www.woodsidehighschool.co.uk/The-School/SDP/WHS_SDP_2018_2019.pdf

Disclosure of information to auditors

Insofar as the Governors are aware:

- there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditors are unaware, and
- that Governors have taken all the steps that ought to have been taken as a Governor in order to be aware
 of any relevant audit information and to establish that the charitable company's auditors are aware of that
 information.

Auditors

The auditors, haysmacintyre, have indicated their willingness to continue in office. The Governors will propose a motion re-appointing the auditors at a meeting of the Governors.

The Governors' Report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the Board of Governors, as the company directors, on 20 November 2018 and signed on its behalf by:

Gerard Anthony Kelly Chair of Trustees

WOODSIDE HIGH SCHOOL

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Scope of Responsibility

As governors, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Woodside High School has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board of Governors has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Co-Headteacher, as Accounting Officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between Woodside High School and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for reporting to the Board of Governors any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Governors' Report and in the Statement of Governors' Responsibilities. The Board of Governors has formally met 3 times during the year. Attendance during the year at meetings of the Board of Governors was as follows:

Governor	Meetings attended	Out of a possible
Susan Mary Davidson	2	3
Samuel James Freedman	1	3
Noreen Catherine Graham	2	3
Dr Phillip Jeremy Graham	3	3
Gerard Anthony Kelly, Chair	3	3
Margaret McCartan	1	.1
Miranda Smith	1	2
Jacob Adekunle	0	3
Ceri Humm	3	3
Sharon Smith	0	3
Elma McElligott	2	3
Gerry Robinson	3	3
Rose-Marie Corbin	3	3
Felicia Rock	2	3
Nuwan Bodhinayake	2	3
Daniel Cain-Reed	1	1

Governance reviews:

The School Governing body is aware of the requirements to ensure it is satisfied that it has a suitable range of skills sets within its membership. To support that objective, in 2015 the Governing Body became a corporate member of the National Governors Association, giving access to its range of resources. This includes a detailed skills audit, and a review of roles of Governors in supporting the operation of the School. To that end, one Governor is now a member of the School's Health and Safety Committee, that meets 3 times per year. Another Governor now takes a lead role in parental engagement, through our Woodside Family and Friends Forum.

The Finance and Resources Committee is a sub committee of the main governing body. Its purpose is to oversee the financial management of the school to ensure that it operates within its budget, and maximises opportunities for investment within the fabric of the school and its teaching resources.

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)

Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows:

Governor	Meetings attended	Out of a possible
Gerard Anthony Kelly	2	3
Noreen Catherine Graham (Chair)	3	3
Susan Mary Davidson	3	3
Danial Cain-Reed	1	1
Samuel James Freedman	0	3
Dr Phillip Graham	2	3
Sharon Smith	0	3
Margaret McCartan	0	1
Gerry Robinson	3	3
Elma McElligott	2	2

The Curriculum and Inclusion Committee is also a sub committee of the main governing body. Its purpose is to oversee the content of the curriculum and to ensure all students are provided with the best opportunity to achieve to their highest expectations.

Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows:

Governor	Meetings attended	Out of a possible
Noreen Catherine Graham	2	3
Dr Phillip Jeremy Graham	2	2
Gerard Anthony Kelly	1	3
Susan Mary Davidson (Chair)	3	3
Miranda Smith	1	2
Margaret McCartan	0	1
Jacob Adekunle	0	3
Sharon Smith	0	3
Ceri Humm	0	1
Daniel Cain-Reed	1	1
Elma McElligott	2	3
Gerry Robinson	3	3

Review of Value for Money

As Accounting Officer, the Co-Headteacher has responsibility for ensuring that the academy delivers good value in the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the academy's use of its resources has provided good value for money during each academic year, and reports to the Board of Governors where value for money can be improved, including the use of benchmarking data where appropriate. The Accounting Officer for the academy has delivered improved value for money during the year by:

- Setting in place the necessary infrastructure and recruitment changes to ensure that the School can
 expand to approximately 1,200 students, from a 2013/14 in—year roll of about 800; this was
 successful in that our new year 7 population, September 2017, comprises 240 students; this will
 result in more efficient use of public investment previously made in the physical fabric of Woodside
 High School;
- outcomes for Year 11 were excellent and the progress our students made since key stage 2 was in the top 18% nationally
- the leadership team has been streamlined, and now is smaller with lower overall salary costs for 2017/18
- Benchmarking of internal non teaching services has been undertaken with an associated restructure and a new print contract has been let, along with an external company now managing our

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)

catering service;

Considering and acting upon the various reports from the School's internal and external auditors.

The Purpose of the System of Internal Control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of academy policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in Woodside High School for the year 1 September 2017 to 31 August 2018 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

Capacity to Handle Risk

The Board of Governors has reviewed the key risks to which the academy is exposed together with the operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of Governors is of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the academy's significant risks, that has been in place for the year 1 September 2017 to 31 August 2018 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the Board of Governors.

The Risk and Control Framework

The academy's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability. In particular, it includes:

- comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Governors;
- regular reviews by the Finance and Resources Committee of reports which indicate financial performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes;
- setting targets to measure financial and other performance;
- clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines.
- delegation of authority and segregation of duties;
- identification and management of risks.

The Board of Governors has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and has decided to appoint Robert Ashdown as internal auditor.

The internal auditor's role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on the academy's financial systems. In particular the checks carried out in the current period included:

- Payroll/HR process analysed with regard to new system in place; –
- o Contents of the School website
- o Policy documents reviewed:
- o The Budget for 2017 2018 was checked
- o The School's 5 Year Budget projections reviewed and commented upon;
- o Taxable benefits
- o Invoicing by external contractors
- o Banking reconciliation
- o Credit card usage and controls

On a semi-annual basis, the internal auditor reports to the Board of Governors through the audit committee on the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the Board of Governors' financial responsibilities.

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)

Review of Effectiveness

As Accounting Officer, the Co-Headteacher has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

- the work of the internal auditor;
- the work of the external auditors;
- the work of the executive managers within the academy who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the internal control framework.

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal control by the internal auditor and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Governors on 20 November 2018 and signed on their behalf, by:

Gerard Anthony Kelly Chair of Trustees

Gerry Robinson Accounting Officer

a Robinson

STATEMENT ON REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

As Accounting Officer of Woodside High School I have considered my responsibility to notify the academy trust board of Governors and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with ESFA terms and conditions of funding, under the funding agreement in place between the academy trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration I have had due regard to the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2017.

I confirm that I and the academy trust board of Governors are able to identify any material irregular or improper use of funds by the academy trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the academy trust's funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2017.

I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the board of Governors and ESFA.

Gerry Robinson Accounting Officer

a Robinson.

STATEMENT OF GOVERNORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

The Governors (who a are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for preparing the Governors' Report and the financial statements in accordance with the Annual Accounts Direction issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Governors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law the Governors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Governors are required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
- observe the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 2015 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2017 to 2018;
- make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
- state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards (FRS 102) have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;
- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the charitable company will continue in business.

The Governors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Governors are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DfE have been applied for the purposes intended.

The Governors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by prder of the members of the Board of Governors on 20 November 2018 and signed on its behalf by:

Gerard Anthony Kelly Chair of Trustees

WOODSIDE HIGH SCHOOL

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF WOODSIDE HIGH SCHOOL

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Woodside High School (the 'academy') for the year ended 31 August 2018 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities incorporating Income and Expenditure Account, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Cash Flows and the related notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland', the Charities SORP 2015 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2017 to 2018 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the academy's affairs as at 31 August 2018 and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year then ended;
- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and
- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities SORP 2015 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2017 to 2018 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the academy in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom, including the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to you where:

- the Governors' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate; or
- the Governors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may
 cast significant doubt about the academy's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
 accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are
 authorised for issue.

Other information

The Governors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, other than the financial statements and our Auditors' Report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF WOODSIDE HIGH SCHOOL

knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- the information given in the Governors' Report including the Strategic Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
- the Governors' Report and the Strategic Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the academy and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Governors' Report including the Strategic Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
- certain disclosures of Governors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of Governors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Governors' Responsibilities, the Governors (who are also the directors of the academy for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Governors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Governors are responsible for assessing the academy's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Governors either intend to liquidate the academy or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF WOODSIDE HIGH SCHOOL

Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditors' Report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our Auditors' Report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the academy's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the academy's members those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditors' Report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the academy and its members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Thomas Wilson (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of

haysmacintyre

Statutory Auditors

10 Queen Street Place

London EC4R 1AG

Date: 20/11/16

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS' ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO WOODSIDE HIGH SCHOOL AND THE EDUCATION FUNDING AGENCY

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 28 September 2017 and further to the requirements of the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2017 to 2018, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income received by Woodside High School during the year 1 September 2017 to 31 August 2018 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to Woodside High School and the ESFA in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to Woodside High School and the ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Woodside High School and the ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Woodside High School's accounting officer and the reporting accountant

The Accounting Officer is responsible, under the requirements of Woodside High School's funding agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 11 July 2011, and the Academies Financial Handbook extant from 1 September 2017, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2017 to 2018. We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2017 to 31 August 2018 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2017 to 2018 issued by the ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the academy's income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:

- Assessment of the control environment operated by the Academy.
- Walkthrough testing of controls to ensure operational effectiveness.
- Substantive testing on a sample of expenditure items, ensuring expenditure is in accordance with the funding agreement and appropriately authorised.
- Detailed testing on a selection of expense claims and credit card statements.
- Review of minutes, bank certificates and related party declarations provided by Governors.

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS' ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO WOODSIDE HIGH SCHOOL AND THE EDUCATION FUNDING AGENCY (continued)

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2017 to 31 August 2018 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

haysmacintyre

Reporting Accountant

10 Queen Street Place London EC4R 1AG

Date: 20/11/18

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

INCOME FROM:	Note	Unrestricted funds 2018 £	Restricted funds 2018	Restricted fixed asset funds 2018	Total funds 2018 £	Total funds 2017 £
Donations and capital grants Charitable activities Other trading activities Investments	2 5 3 4	624 285,991 17,923	7,562,122 - 826	19,441 - - -	20,065 7,848,113 17,923 826	19,111 7,534,614 15,689 1,415
TOTAL INCOME		304,538	7,562,948	19,441	7,886,927	7,570,829
EXPENDITURE ON: Charitable activities TOTAL EXPENDITURE	6	298,090	8,066,388	488,046	8,852,524 8,852,524	8,284,801 8,284,801
NET INCOME / (EXPENDITURE) BEFORE TRANSFERS Transfers between Funds	17	6,448 -	(503,440) (16,337)	(468,605) 16,337	(965,597) -	(713,972)
NET INCOME / (EXPENDITURE) BEFORE OTHER RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES		6,448	(519,777)	(452,268)	(965,597)	(713,972)
Actuarial gains on defined benefit pension schemes	21	-	847,000	-	847,000	1,723,000
NET MOVEMENT IN FUNDS		6,448	327,223	(452,268)	(118,597)	1,009,028
RECONCILIATION OF FUNDS: Total funds brought forward	:	280,677	(858,806)	19,753,970	19,175,841	18,166,813
TOTAL FUNDS CARRIED FORWARD		287,125	(531,583)	19,301,702	19,057,244	19,175,841

WOODSIDE HIGH SCHOOL

(A Company Limited by Guarantee) REGISTERED NUMBER: 07831292

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 AUGUST 2018

				•	
	Note	20 £	18 £	20 £	
FIVED ACCETS	Note	L.	L	L.	£
FIXED ASSETS Tangible assets	12		19,301,702		19,753,970
_	12		19,501,702		19,733,970
CURRENT ASSETS	10	200.026		200.004	
Debtors Cash at bank and in hand	13	200,926		309,061	
Cash at bank and in hand		652,960		624,996	
		853,886		934,057	
CREDITORS: amounts falling due within					
one year	14	(454,848)		(421,186)	
NET CURRENT ASSETS			399,038		512,871
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILIT	IES		19,700,740		20,266,841
CREDITORS: amounts falling due after					
more than one year	15		(16,496)		
NET ASSETS EXCLUDING PENSION					
SCHEME LIABILITIES			19,684,244		20,266,841
Defined benefit pension scheme liability	21		(627,000)		(1,091,000)
NET ASSETS INCLUDING PENSION					
SCHEME LIABILITIES			19,057,244		19,175,841
FUNDS OF THE ACADEMY					
Restricted income funds:			•		
Restricted income funds	17	95,417		232,194	
Restricted fixed asset funds	17	19,301,702		19,753,970	
Restricted funds excluding pension liability		19,397,119		19,986,164	
Pension reserve		(627,000)		(1,091,000)	
Total restricted income funds			18,770,119		18,895,164
Unrestricted income funds	17		287,125		280,677
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	• •				
TOTAL FUNDS			19,057,244		19,175,841
					=

The financial statements on pages 22 to 45 were approved by the Governors, and authorised for issue, on 20 November 2018 and are signed on their behalf, by:

Gerard Appropriet Kelly Chair of Trustees

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

	Note	2018 £	2017 £
Cash flows from operating activities	•		
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities	19	24,917	(51,978)
Cash flows from investing activities: Interest received Purchase of tangible fixed assets Capital grants from DfE/ESFA		826 (35,778) 19,441	1,415 (46,247) 18,243
Net cash used in investing activities		(15,511)	(26,589)
Cash flows from financing activities: Repayments of Salix loan Cash inflows from Salix loan Net cash provided by financing activities		(2,062) 20,620 ————————————————————————————————————	- - -
Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year		27,964	(78,567)
Cash and cash equivalents brought forward Cash and cash equivalents carried forward	20	624,996	703,563

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except where noted), judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

1.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2016 to 2017 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

Woodside High School constitutes a public benefit entity as defined by FRS 102.

1.2 Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the charitable objects of the academy at the discretion of the Governors.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by the Department for Education where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the funder and include grants from the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.3 Income

All income is recognised once the academy has entitlement to the income, it is probable that the income will be received and the amount of income receivable can be measured reliably.

Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the Balance Sheet. Where income is received in advance of entitlement of receipt, its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as deferred income. Where entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are expended. Unspent amounts of capital grant are reflected in the balance in the restricted fixed asset fund.

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis where receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Income tax recoverable in relation to donations received under Gift Aid or deeds of covenant is recognised at the time of the donation.

Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period in which it is receivable and to the extent the goods have been provided or on completion of the service.

1.4 Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the asset's use.

Expenditure on charitable activities are costs incurred on the academy's educational operations, including support costs and those costs relating to the governance of the academy appointed to charitable activities.

All expenditure is inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.5 Going concern

The Governors assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate, i.e. whether there are any material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the academy to continue as a going concern. The Governors make this assessment in respect of a period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and have concluded that the academy trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the academy trust's ability to continue as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements

1.6 Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

All assets costing more than £1,000 are capitalised and are carried at cost, net of depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities. and carried forward in the Balance Sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets at rates calculated to write off the cost of these assets, less their estimated residual value, over their expected useful lives on the following bases:

L/Term Leasehold Property

2% straight line

Fixtures and fittings

10-20% straight line

Computer equipment - 33% straight line

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities.

1.7 Operating leases

Rentals under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Financial Activities on a straight line basis over the lease term.

1.8 Taxation

The academy is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes. Accordingly, the academy is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within categories covered by Chapter 3 Part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.9 Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount after any trade discount offered. Prepayments are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due.

1.10 Cash at Bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short term highly liquid investments with a short maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar account.

1.11 Liabilities and provisions

Liabilities and provisions are recognised when there is an obligation at the Balance Sheet date as a result of a past event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the academy anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods or services it must provide. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation. Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is based on the present value of those amounts, discounted at the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised within interest payable and similar charges.

1.12 Financial instruments

The academy only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and financial liabilities of the academy and their measurement basis are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 13. Prepayments are not financial instruments. Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured at amortised costs as detailed in notes 14 and 15. Taxation and social security are not included in the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another financial instruments.

1.13 Pensions

Retirement benefits to employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme ("TPS") and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over employees' working lives with the academy in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method. As stated in note 21, the TPS is a multi-employer scheme and there is insufficient information available to use defined benefit accounting. The TPS is therefore treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The LGPS is a funded scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the academy trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each Balance Sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

1.14 Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgment

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 21, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2016 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 August 2018. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

		1]	Destricted	Takat	Takal
		Unrestricted funds	Restricted funds	Total funds	Total funds
		2018	2018	2018	2017
		£	£	£	£
	Donations	624	-	624	868
	Capital Grants	-	1,9,441	19,441	18,243
٠	÷	624	19,441	20,065	19,111
	Total 2017	868	18,243	19,111	
	·				
3.	OTHER TRADING ACTIVITIES	•			
		Unrestricted	Restricted	Total	Total
		funds 2018	funds 2018	funds 2018	funds 2017
		£	£	£	£
	Hire of facilities	17,923	-	17,923	15,689
		17,923	-	17,923	15,689
	Total 2017	15,689		15,689	
					
4.	INVESTMENT INCOME				
		Unrestricted	Restricted	Total	Total
		funds	funds	funds	funds
		2018 £	2018 £	2018 £	2017 £
	Bank interest	-	826	826	1,415
			 :		

INCOME FROM CHARITABLE ACTIVITI	ES			
	Unrestricted funds 2018 £	Restricted funds 2018 £	Total funds 2018 £	Total funds 2017 £
Academy's educational operations Other income from charitable activities	- 285,991	7,562,122	7,562,122 285,991	7,229,772 304,842
Total 2018	285,991	7,562,122	7,848,113	7,534,614
Total 2017	304,842	7,229,772	7,534,614	
FUNDING FOR ACADEMY'S EDUCATION	NAL OPERATIO	NS		
	Unrestricted funds 2018 £	Restricted funds 2018 £	Total funds 2018 £	Total funds 2017 £
DfE/ESFA grants				
General Annual Grant (GAG) Other DfE/ESFA grants	-	6,825,630 485,970	6,825,630 485,970	6,474,763 473,562
		7,311,600	7,311,600	6,948,325
Other government grants				
Special educational projects Statemented funding	-	35,276 215,246	35,276 215,246	50,706 230,741
		250,522	250,522	281,447
			 .	
		7,562,122	7,562,122	7,229,772
Total 2017		7,229,772	7,229,772	

6.	EXPENDITURE					
		Staff costs 2018 £	Premises 2018 £	Other costs 2018 £	Total 2018 £	Total 2017 £
	Academy's education operations					
	Direct costs Support costs	5,456,096 1,336,476	- 804,556	664,872 541,304	6,120,968 2,682,336	5,536,980 2,711,572
	Governance costs	-		49,220	49,220	36,249
		6,792,572	804,556	1,255,396	8,852,524	8,284,801
	Total 2017	6,437,309	803,766	1,043,726	8,284,801	

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

7. CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES

DIRECT COSTS - EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS	Total funds 2018 £	Total funds 2017 £
Wages and salaries National insurance Pension cost Pension finance cost Educational supplies Examination fees Staff development Educational consultancy	4,274,588 421,132 760,376 32,000 404,759 98,311 40,010 89,792	3,982,152 417,373 570,398 55,000 311,310 79,502 32,754 88,491
	6,120,968	5,536,980
SUPPORT COSTS - EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS		
Wages and salaries National insurance Pension cost Depreciation Other Support costs Recruitment and support Insurance Maintenance of premises and equipment Cleaning and utilities Bank interest and charges Rent and Rates Technology costs Catering	910,518 73,003 352,955 488,046 276,526 76,954 23,923 261,488 55,022 962 47,190 5,141 110,608	1,003,532 64,854 399,000 485,001 256,478 51,587 23,571 259,277 59,489 1,323 48,676 7,880 50,904
	2,682,336	2,711,572
	8,803,304	8,248,552
Governance costs		
Support costs	49,220	36,249
	8,852,524	8,284,801

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

8.	NET	FYP	ENDI	ILIRE
Ο.	14121		CINDI	UNE

This is stated after charging:

	2018 £	2017 £
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets:		
- owned by the charity	488,046	485,001
Auditors' remuneration - audit	11,295	10,975
Auditors' remuneration - other services	1,390	1,350

WOODSIDE HIGH SCHOOL

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

9. STAFF COSTS

Staff costs were as follows:

Staff costs were as follows:		
	2018 £	2017 £
Wages and salaries Social security costs Pension costs	4,803,978 494,135 1,113,331	4,657,437 482,227 969,398
Supply teacher costs Staff restructuring costs	6,411,444 373,233 7,895 6,792,572	6,109,062 227,341 100,906 6,437,309
Staff restructuring costs comprise:		
Redundancy payments Severance payments	7,895	100,906
	7,895	100,906
		

Included in staff restructuring costs is a non-stututory severance payment of £7,895 made on 20 February 2018.

The average number of persons employed by the academy during the year was as follows:

	2018	2017
	No.	No.
Teachers	68	65
Education Support	36	35
Administration and Estate	44	44
	148	144

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded £60,000 was:

	2018	2017
	No.	No.
In the band £60,001 - £70,000	2	5
In the band £90,001 - £100,000	0	2
In the band £100,001 - £110,000	2	1

The number of employees included in these bands has decreased due to changes in the employees performing the relevant roles in the year, resulting in fewer employees receiving benefits at the qualifying rates throughout the year and therefore being included in these bands. All of the above employees (2017: all but one) participated in the Teachers' Pension Scheme. During the year ended 31 August 2018, pension contributions by the School for these staff amounted to £55,999 (2017: £98,471).

The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the trustees and the senior management

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

9. STAFF COSTS (continued)

team as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee costs (including employer pension contributions and NI contributions) for key management personnel for their services to the academy trust was £818,966 (2017: £763,472).

10. GOVERNORS' REMUNERATION AND EXPENSES

One or more Governors has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment with the academy trust. The Co Headteachers and other staff Governors only receive remuneration in respect of services they provide undertaking the roles of principal and other staff members under their contracts of employment, and not in respect of their role as Governors, The value of Governors' remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

		2018 £	2017 £
Margaret McCartan	Remuneration Pension contributions paid	10,000-15,000 0-5,000	25,000-30,000 0-5,000
E McElligott	Remuneration Pension contributions paid	105,000-110,000 15,000-20,000	90,000-95,000 15,000-20,000
G Robinson	Remuneration Pension contributions paid	105,000-110,000 15,000-20,000	100,000-105,000 15,000-20,000
Joan Harris	Remuneration Pension contributions paid		10,000-15,000 0-5,000

11. GOVERNORS' AND OFFICERS' INSURANCE

The academy trust has opted into the Department for Education's risk protection arrangement (RPA), an alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the Governors and officers indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme.

12.	TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS				
		L/Term Leasehold Property £	Fixtures and fittings	Computer equipment £	Total £
	Cost				
	At 1 September 2017 Additions	22,224,782 -	62,876 24,697	170,728 11,081	22,458,386 35,778
	At 31 August 2018	22,224,782	87,573	181,809	22,494,164
	Depreciation				
	At 1 September 2017 Charge for the year	2,565,315 444,496	17,148 13,738	121,953 29,812	2,704,416 488,046
	At 31 August 2018	3,009,811	30,886	151,765	3,192,462
	Net book value				
	At 31 August 2018	19,214,971	56,687	30,044	19,301,702
	At 31 August 2017	19,659,467	45,728	48,775	19,753,970
13.	DEBTORS				
				2018 £	2017 £
	Trade debtors VAT recoverable Prepayments and accrued income			71,366 11,399 118,161	110,792 63,668 134,601
				200,926	309,061
				·	
14.	CREDITORS: Amounts falling due within	n one year			
	A. Carrier and A. Car			2018 ·	2017 £
	Salix loan Trade creditors			2,062 216,327	- 184,539
	Other taxation and social security			121,250	121,358
	Other creditors Accruals and deferred income			94,052 21,157	89,310 25,979
				454,848	421,186

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

15.	CREDITORS: Amounts falling due after more than one year		
	Salix loan	2018 £ 16,496	2017 £ -
16.	FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS	2018	2017
	Financial assets measured at amortised cost	£ 71,366	£ 110,792
	Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost	(350,094)	(299,828)

Financial assets measured at amortised cost include trade debtors.

Financial liabilities measured at amortised costs include trade creditors, accruals, other creditors, and Salix loans.

17. STATEMENT OF	FUNDS					
	Balance at 1 September 2017 £	Income £	Expenditure £	Transfers in/out £	Gains/ (Losses) £	Balance at 31 August 2018 £
Unrestricted funds						
General Funds	280,677	304,538	(298,090)			287,125
Restricted funds			•			
General Annual Grant						
(GAG) Other DfE/ESFA grants	232,194	6,837,932 725,016	(6,958,372) (725,016)	(16,337)	-	95,417
Pension reserve	(1,091,000)	725,010	(383,000)	-	847,000	(627,000)
	(858,806)	7,562,948	(8,066,388)	(16,337)	847,000	(531,583)
Restricted fixed asset for	unds					
Fixed Asset Funds	19,753,970	19,441	(488,046)	16,337	· -	19,301,702
Total restricted funds	18,895,164	7,582,389	(8,554,434)	-	847,000	18,770,119
Total of funds	19,175,841	7,886,927	(8,852,524)	-	847,000	19,057,244
STATEMENT OF FUNDS	S - PRIOR YEAR	.				
÷	Balance at 1 September 2016 £	Income £	Expenditure £	Transfers in/out £	Gains/ (Losses) £	Balance at 31 August 2017 £
Unrestricted funds						
General Funds	264,988	321,399	(305,710)	-	-	280,677
	264,988	321,399	(305,710)		-	280,677
Restricted funds					•	
General Annual Grant	220 101	6 474 762	(6 442 667)	(28.002)		222 104
(GAG) Other DfE/ESFA grants Pension reserve	229,101	6,474,763 756,424	(6,443,667) (756,424)	(28,003) -	- - 1 722 000	232,194
rension reserve	(2,520,000)		(294,000)		1,723,000	(1,091,000)
	(2,290,899)	7,231,187	(7,494,091)	(28,003)	1,723,000	(858,806)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

17. STATEMENT OF FUNDS (continued)

Restricted fixed asset funds

20,192,724	18,243	(485,000)	28,003	-	19,753,970
20,192,724	18,243	(485,000)	28,003	-	19,753,970
17,901,825	7,249,430	(7,979,091)	-	1,723,000	18,895,164
18,166,813	7,570,829	(8,284,801)		1,723,000	19,175,841
	20,192,724	20,192,724 17,901,825 7,249,430	20,192,724 18,243 (485,000) 17,901,825 7,249,430 (7,979,091)	20,192,724 18,243 (485,000) 28,003 17,901,825 7,249,430 (7,979,091) -	20,192,724 18,243 (485,000) 28,003 - 17,901,825 7,249,430 (7,979,091) - 1,723,000

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

The General Annual Grant is funding from the DfE for the Academy's operating costs.

Other DfE/ESFA grants mainly relate to statemented funding and grants to fund costs of the School.

Restricted fixed asset funds are the funds associated with the fixed assets of the School.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the academy was not subject to a limit on the amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August 2018.

18. ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS

	Unrestricted funds 2018 £	Restricted funds 2018	Restricted fixed asset funds 2018	Total funds 2018 £
Tangible fixed assets Current assets Creditors due within one year Creditors due in more than one year Pension scheme liability	287,125 - - -	566,761 (454,848) (16,496) (627,000)	19,301,702 - - - - -	19,301,702 853,886 (454,848) (16,496) (627,000)
	287,125	(531,583)	19,301,702	19,057,244

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

18. ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS (continued)

ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS - PRIOR YEAR

	Unrestricted funds	Restricted funds	Restricted fixed asset funds	Total funds
	2017 £	2017 £	2017 £	2017 £
Tangible fixed assets Current assets Creditors due within one year Provisions for liabilities and charges	280,677 - -	- 653,380 (421,186) (1,091,000)	19,753,970 - - -	19,753,970 934,057 (421,186) (1,091,000)
	280,677	(858,806)	19,753,970	19,175,841

19. RECONCILIATION OF NET MOVEMENT IN FUNDS TO NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

		2018 £	2017 £
	Net expenditure for the year (as per Statement of Financial Activities)	(965,597)	(713,972)
	Adjustment for:		,
	Depreciation charges	488,046	485,001
	Interest receivable	(826)	(1,415)
	Decrease/(increase) in debtors	108,135	(25,175)
	Increase/(decrease) in creditors	31,600	(72,174)
	Capital grants from DfE and other capital income	(19,441)	(18,243)
	Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable	351,000	239,000
	Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost	32,000	55,000
	Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities	24,917	(51,978)
20.	ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS		
	•	2018	2017
		£	£
	Cash at hand	180	179
	Cash at bank	652,780	624,817
	Total	652,960	624,996

21. PENSION COMMITMENTS

The academy's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teacher's Pension Scheme for England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by The London Borough of Haringey. Both are Multi-

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

21. PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued)

Employer Defined Benefit Pension Schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2012 and of the LGPS 31 March 2016.

There were no outstanding or prepaid contributions at either the beginning or the end of the financial year.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

Introduction

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the Teachers' Pensions Regulations (2010) and, from 1 April 2014, by the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in academies and, from 1 January 2007, automatic for teachers in part-time employment following appointment or a change of contract, although they are able to opt out.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members contribute on a 'pay as you go' basis – these contributions along with those made by employers are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by HM Treasury. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2012 and in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 9 June 2014. The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are:

- employer contribution rates set at 16.48% of pensionable pay, including a 0.08% employer administration charge.
- total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for service to the effective date of £191,500 million, and notional assets (estimated future contributions together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £176,600 million giving a notional past service deficit of £14,900 million
- an employer cost cap of 10.9% of pensionable pay will be applied to future valuations
- the assumed real rate of return is 3.0% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.75%. The assumed nominal rate of return is 5.06%.

The TPS valuation for 2012 determined an employer rate of 16.4%, which was payable from September 2015. Employers are also currently required to pay a scheme administration levy of 0.08% giving a total employer contribution rate of 16.48%.

This employer rate will be payable until the completion and outcome of the next actuarial valuation which is being prepared as at 31 March 2016. Her Majesty's Treasury published draft Directions for the TPS on 6 September 2018 to allow the Department for Education to finalise this valuation. Early indications from the valuation are that the amount employers will be required to pay towards the scheme may increase substantially from September 2019.

There are also indications that the protections in the new cost cap mechanism required by the Public

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

21. PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued)

Service Pensions Act 2013 mean public sector workers will get improved pension benefits for employment over the period April 2019 to March 2023.

The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £430,718 (2017 - £413,774).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website (www.teacherspensions.co.uk/news/employers/2014/06/publication-of-the-valuation-report.aspx).

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is a multi-employer pension scheme. The trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The trust has set out above the information available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit scheme, with assets held in separate trustee-administered funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2018 was £406,000 (2017 - £445,000), of which employer's contributions totalled £306,000 (2017 - £352,000) and employees' contributions totalled £100,000 (2017 - £93,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 20% for employers and between 5.5 and 7.5% for employees.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013. Principal actuarial assumptions:

	2018	2017
Discount rate for scheme liabilities	2.80 %	2.50 %
Rate of increase in salaries	2.90 %	3.00 %
Rate of increase for pensions in payment / inflation	2.30 %	2.40 %
Inflation assumption (CPI)	2.30 %	2.40 %

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates. The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

	2018	2017
Retiring today Males Females	21.8 24.1	21.8 24.1
Retiring in 20 years Males Females	23.8 26.0	23.8 26.0

Sensitivity analysis	At 31 August 2018 £	At 31 August 2017 £
Discount rate +0.1%	(173)	(165)
Discount rate -0.1%	173	165
Morality assumption - 1 year increase	252	313
Morality assumption - 1 year decrease	(252)	(313)
CPI rate +0.1%	132	121

FOR	THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018		
21.	PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued)		
	CPI rate -0.1%	(132)	(121)
	The academy's share of the assets in the scheme v	vas:	
		Fair value at 31 August 2018 £	Fair value at 31 August 2017 £
	Equities Gilts Property Cash and other liquid assets	3,828,000 1,392,000 348,000 232,000	3,516,000 1,189,000 362,000 104,000
	Total market value of assets	5,800,000	5,171,000
	The actual return on scheme assets was £133,000	(2017 - £91,000).	
	The amounts recognised in the Statement of Fina Account are as follows:	ancial Activities incorporating Incom	e and Expenditure
		2018 £	2017 £
	Current service cost Past service cost Interest income Interest cost	(657,000) - 133,000 (165,000)	(572,000) (19,000) 91,000 (146,000)
	Total	(689,000)	(646,000)
	Movements in the present value of the defined benefit	efit obligation were as follows:	
		2018 £	2017 £
	Opening defined benefit obligation Current service cost Interest cost Employee contributions Actuarial gains Benefits paid Past service costs	6,262,000 657,000 165,000 100,000 (684,000) (73,000)	6,647,000 572,000 146,000 93,000 (1,144,000) (71,000) 19,000
	Closing defined benefit obligation	6,427,000	6,262,000

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

21. PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued)

Movements in the fair value of the academy's share of scheme assets:

	2018	2017
	£	£
Opening fair value of scheme assets	5,171,000	4,127,000
Interest income	133,000	91,000
Actuarial losses	163,000	579,000
Employer contributions	306,000	352,000
Employee contributions	100,000	93,000
Benefits paid	(73,000)	(71,000)
Closing fair value of scheme assets	5,800,000	5,171,000
		

22. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Dr Philip Graham, as well as a Governor of Woodside High School, is also a Governor of Riverside School. Woodside High School provides support services to Riverside School for which it is paid fees by Riverside (London Borough of Haringey). The total fees in the year to 31 August 2018 were £200,497 (2017: £198,152). An amount totalling £49,842 (2017: £82,238) was outstanding at the balance sheet date.

23. MEMBERS' LIABILITY

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding \pounds 10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he/she ceases to be a member.